MINUTES OF THE WAVERLEY TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MEETING HELD BY VIDEO CONFERENCE ON THURSDAY, 25 MARCH 2021



Voting Members Present:

Cr P Masselos	Waverley Council – Chair
S/Cst A Birchansky	NSW Police – Eastern Suburbs Police Area Command – Traffic Services
Mr M Carruthers	Transport for NSW – Network and Safety Officer
Mr P Pearce	Representing Marjorie O'Neill, MP, Member for Coogee
Ms J Zin	Representing Gabrielle Upton, MP, Member for Vaucluse
Also Present:	
Mr B Gidiess	State Transit – Traffic and Services Manager (Eastern Region)
Cr T Kay	Waverley Council – Alternate Chair
Cr D Wy Kanak	Waverley Council
Mr D Joannides	Waverley Council – Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services
Mr C Hutcheson	Waverley Council – Service Manager, Traffic and Transport
Mr C Eccles	Waverley Council – Project Manager, Civil Infrastructure
Mr H Bahari	Waverley Council – Professional Engineer, Traffic and Transport
Mr P Cai	Waverley Council – Traffic Engineer
Mr E Kayes	Waverley Council – Traffic Engineer

At the commencement of proceedings at 10.12 am, those present were as listed above.

At 11.12 am, Mr P Pearce left the meeting and did not return.

Apologies

There were no apologies.

Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

The Chair called for declarations of interest and none were received.

Adoption of Previous Minutes by Council - 25 February 2021

The recommendations contained in Part 1 – Matters Proposing that Council Exercise its Delegated Functions – of the minutes of the Waverley Traffic Committee meeting held on 25 February 2021 were adopted by Council at its meeting on 16 March 2021 with the following changes:

1. TC/C.02/21.02 – 40km/h Speed Limit Changes – Traffic Control Devices – Park Parade, Bondi.

Council adopted the recommendations of the Traffic Committee subject to it being amended to read as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Approves the design of the traffic calming devises consisting of 75 mm rubber cushions as shown in Attachment 1 (Option 3) of the report, including a 12-month trial of the rubber speed cushions outside 10 and 32 Park Parade.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.
- 2. TC/C.04/21.02 40km/h Speed Limit Changes Review of Treatments on Bourke Street, Bennett Street and Botany Street

Council adopted the recommendations of the Traffic Committee subject to it being amended to read as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Installs the following traffic calming treatments:
 - (a) A mountable roundabout at the intersection of Botany Street and Allens Parade, Bondi Junction, as shown in Figure 2 of the report.
 - (b) 75 mm rubber speed cushions at 27 Bennett Street, Bondi, as shown in Figure 3 of the report, for a trial for 12 months.
- 2. Notes the submissions from residents of Bourke Street and does not install rubber speed cushions at 13 Bourke Street, Queens Park.

ITEMS BY EXCEPTION

The following items on the agenda were dealt with together and the Council Officer's Proposal for each item was unanimously supported by the Committee:

TC/C.01/21.03	Bronte Cutting Safety Upgrade.
TC/C.04/21.03	49 Blair Street, Bondi Beach - 'P Disability only' and 'Motor Bikes Only' Zones.
TC/CV.02/21.03	Flood Street and Evans Street Line Marking - Resheeting and Linemarking.
TC/V.02/21.03	32 Tower Street, Vaucluse - Removal of 'P Disability Only' Zone.
TC/V.03/21.03	4 MacDonald Street, Vaucluse - Construction Zone.
TC/V.06/21.03	2-4 Jaques Avenue, Bondi Beach - Construction Zone.
TC/V.07/21.03	43-45 Hall Street, Bondi Beach - Construction Zone.
TC/V.08/21.03	Francis Street south of Wellington Street, Bondi Beach - Proposed Double Centre (BB) Line Marking.

PART 1 – MATTERS PROPOSING THAT COUNCIL EXERCISE ITS DELEGATED FUNCTIONS

NOTE: The matters listed under this part of the agenda propose that Council either does or does not exercise the traffic related functions delegated to it by TfNSW. The recommendations made by the Committee under this part of the agenda will be submitted to Council for adoption.

TC/C STATE ELECTORATE OF COOGEE

TC/C.01/21.03 Bronte Cutting Safety Upgrade (A20/0015)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Endorses the 100% detailed design for Bronte Cutting Safety Upgrade, on Calga Place, between Bronte Road and Macpherson Street, attached to this report (Attachment 1).
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the design should circumstances arise during the delivery of the project.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.02/21.03 York Road and Baronga Avenue - Slip Lane (SF21/1014)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council approves the construction of a left-turn slip lane on York Road at intersection with Baronga Avenue and associated lines and signs as shown in Attachment 1.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to the addition of a new clause 2, such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Approves the construction of a left-turn slip lane on York Road at intersection with Baronga Avenue and associated lines and signs as shown in Attachment 1.
- 2. Refers to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services to investigate the potential for widening the North bound lanes in the vicinity of York Road and Baronga Avenue intersection.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.03/21.0340 km/h Speed Limit Changes - Traffic Control Devices - Park Parade and Dickson
Street at Birrell Street, Bondi (A18/0579)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Approves the installation of centre line marking with kerb extensions at the intersection of Park Parade and Birrell Street as shown in Figure 2.
- 2. Approves the installation of a pedestrian refuge island with kerb extensions at the intersection of Dickson Street and Birrell Street as shown in Figure 3.
- 3. Approves the installation of a 'No Right Turn, 8am-9:30am and 2:30pm-4pm, Monday to Friday' restriction on the southbound approach to Birrell Street at the intersection of Park Parade and Birrell Street.
- 4. Approves the installation of a 'No Right Turn, 8am-9:30am and 2:30pm-4pm, Monday to Friday' restriction on the northbound approach to Birrell Street at the intersection of Dickson Street and Birrell Street.
- 5. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to being amended to read as follows:

1. Approves the installation of centre line marking with kerb extensions at the intersection of Park

Parade and Birrell Street as shown in Figure 2.

- 2. Approves the installation of a pedestrian refuge island with kerb extensions at the intersection of Dickson Street and Birrell Street as shown in Figure 3.
- 3. Installs 'Do not queue across intersection' sign (sign G9-237) on the Southern side of Birrell Street at the Park Parade intersection.
- 4. Installs 'Do not queue across intersection' sign (sign G9-237) on the Southern side of Birrell Street at the Dickson Street intersection.
- 5. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

G Beard (on behalf of Bronte Precinct) and S Hoppe addressed the meeting.

TC/C.04/21.03 49 Blair Street, Bondi Beach - 'P Disability only' and "Motor Bikes Only' Zones (A02/0273)

This item was listed on the agenda under the Electorate of Coogee in error. The item relates to the Electorate of Vaucluse.

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs:

- 1. A 5.4 metre 'P Disability Only' parking zone outside 49 Blair Street, Bondi Beach.
- 2. A 3.6 metre 'P Motor Bikes Only' zone between the driveway of 47 Mitchell Street, Bondi Beach and the new 'P Disability Only' zone.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.05/21.0340 km/h Speed Limit Changes - Traffic Control Devices - Tamarama Marine Drive
(A18/0579)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

1. Approves the detailed design of the pedestrian crossing and relocation of bus stops on Tamarama Marine Drive, Tamarama as shown in Attachment 1.

2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to clause 1 being amended to read as follows:

'Approves the detailed design of the pedestrian crossing and relocation of bus stops on Tamarama Marine Drive, Tamarama as shown in Attachment 1, subject to an electronic review and endorsement of the signs and lines, markings and locations by Transport for NSW and NSW Police.'

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

G Beard addressed the meeting.

TC/V STATE ELECTORATE OF VAUCLUSE

TC/V.01/21.03 Old South Head Road and Diamond Bay Road, Vaucluse - Installation of Double Centre (BB) Line Marking (A14/0145)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs double centre (BB) line marking on Diamond Bay Road at the intersection with Old South Head Road, Vaucluse, as shown in Attachment 1 of the report.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to the addition of a new clause 2, such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Installs double centre (BB) line marking on Diamond Bay Road at the intersection with Old South Head Road, Vaucluse, as shown in Attachment 1 of the report.
- 2. Writes to Transport for NSW seeking endorsement of the design.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.02/21.03 32 Tower Street, Vaucluse - Removal of 'P Disability Only' Zone (A20/0534)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council removes the existing 5.5 metre long 'P Disability Only' zone outside 32 Tower Street, Vaucluse.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.03/21.03 4 MacDonald Street, Vaucluse - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 10.9 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Saturday Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone along the frontage of 4 MacDonald Street, Vaucluse.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.04/21.03 Old South Head Road, Bondi Junction- Bondi Road to Bon Accord Avenue - Shared Path Upgrade (SF19/3435)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs shared pathing including continuous footpath treatments at the intersections of Old South Head Road with Paul Street and Old south Head Road with Bon Accord Avenue as shown in Attachment 1.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to being amended to read as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Installs shared pathing including continuous footpath treatments at the intersections of Old South Head Road with Paul Street and Old south Head Road with Bon Accord Avenue as shown in Attachment 1 with the line-marking of individual motor bike spaces being deleted.
- 2. Writes to Transport for NSW seeking endorsement of the design.

3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.05/21.03 Barracluff Avenue, Bondi Beach - Traffic Calming Scheme (A03/0042-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Approves the traffic calming scheme for Barracluff Avenue as shown in Attachment 1.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to the addition of a new clause 2, such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Approves the traffic calming scheme for Barracluff Avenue as shown in Attachment 1.
- 2. Officers monitor traffic speeds and movement in Barracluff Avenue post installation of the traffic calming scheme.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

S Coveney and D Robinson addressed the meeting.

TC/V.06/21.03 2-4 Jaques Avenue, Bondi Beach - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 9 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Saturday Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone along the frontage of 2-4 Jaques Avenue, Bondi Beach.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.07/21.03 43-45 Hall Street, Bondi Beach - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 18.5 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Saturday Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone along the frontage of 43-45 Hall Street, Bondi Beach.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.08/21.03 Francis Street south of Wellington Street, Bondi Beach - Proposed Double Centre (BB) Line Marking (A03/0042-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs 10 metres of B-B double centre line marking on Francis Street south of Wellington Street, Bondi Beach, as shown in Attachment 1 of the report.
- 2. Extends the existing statutory 'No Stopping' restrictions on Francis Street south of Wellington Street, Bondi Beach, to meet the minimum 10 metre distance requirement as shown in Attachment 1 of the report.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/CV ELECTORATES OF COOGEE AND VAUCLUSE

TC/CV.01/21.03 Bondi to Bronte Coastal Walk - One Way System (A20/0500)

This item was listed on the agenda under the Electorates of Coogee and Vaucluse in error. The item only relates to the Electorate of Coogee.

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Does not implement a permanent one-way road system for Gaerloch Avenue and Dellview Street.
- 2. Undertakes a detailed assessment of appropriate crossing treatments at:
 - (a) Wilga Street on the eastern side of Sandridge Street a continuous footpath treatment.
 - (b) Fletcher Street on the eastern side of Sandridge Street a marked pedestrian crossing.
 - (c) Kenneth Street on the eastern side of Alexander Street a marked pedestrian crossing with kerb extensions.
 - (d) Southeast of Gaerloch Avenue at 22 Gaerloch Avenue (the 90-degree bend in the road) a continuous footpath treatment.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to investigate alternative deigns as part of the detailed design assessment.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/CV.02/21.03 Flood Street and Evans Street Line Marking - Resheeting and Line Marking (A18/0579)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Approves the line-marking of the pavement within:
 - (a) Flood Street, Bondi (Attachment 1).
 - (b) Evans Street, Bronte (Attachment 2).
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 11.39 AM.

.....

SIGNED AND CONFIRMED MAYOR 20 APRIL 2021